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  Yes / No [Please provide details if answered yes.] 

 

4. Are there any concerns/sensitivities about the Minister’s travel proposal that the Branch considers 
should be conveyed to the PMO?  

 Yes / No [Please provide details if answered yes.] 

 
 
Kind regards 
 

 
 
 

 | Adviser | Government Section 

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
p.    |  
Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit  Barton  ACT  2600  
e.  @pmc.gov.au  w. pmc.gov.au  
Please copy emails to:  @pmc.gov.au 

 

 

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and Traditional 

Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal 

and Torres Strait Islander peoples. 
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From:
Sent: Monday, 29 April 2024 3:32 PM
To: ; 
Cc: ; Rule, Erin
Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request - Shorten - USA - 8 June to 16 June 2024 

[SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi  , 
 
Thanks for the conversations today, as discussed,   

: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

.   
 

 
 

 
 
Happy to chat if you have any issues! 
 
Regards, 

 
 

From:    
Sent: Wednesday, 24 April 2024 4:21 PM 
To:  @pmc.gov.au>;  @pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au>;   
@pmc.gov.au>;  @pmc.gov.au> 

Cc:  @pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, 
CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi  , 
 
Apologies for the delay.  
 
The Disability and Children’s Policy team similarly supports this Min Travel request as it is consistent with the 
Government’s commitment to the UN Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities. 
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Happy to chat! 
 
Regards, 

 
 

 | Adviser  
Disability and Children’s Policy 
Social Policy Division  
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet  
p.  
e.  @pmc.gov.au  
Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit, Barton ACT 2600 

 

 

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging 

Elders and Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, 

spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples. 

 
 

From:  @pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 23 April 2024 4:56 PM 
To: @pmc.gov.au>; 

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
 
MEAM supports this Min Travel request in principle as we have sent Ministerial representation before to this event.  
 

  
 

  
  

 
  

 
Thanks, 

 
 

 | Adviser  
Middle East, Africa and Multilat  
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 

p.   | m.   

 
 
 

From:  @pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 22 April 2024 1:24 PM 
To:  @pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au>;  @pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, 
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CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
Importance: High 
 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Afternoon teams, 
 
UUC is happy to coordinate this min travel request.  
 
Given the ANZAC day holiday on Thursday, grateful for any input by NLT Wednesday 24 April 3pm. 
 
Kindly let me know if I have missed any teams or feel free to forward on 
 
Happy to discuss. 
 
Best,  
 

 | Adviser 

UK, US and Canada Section | International Division 

T:    
E.  @pmc.gov.au 

 

From: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 22 April 2024 12:49 PM 
To:  @pmc.gov.au>; 

@pmc.gov.au>; 
@pmc.gov.au> 

Cc: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
Importance: High 
 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
 
Hi teams 
 
Please see below a request for advice on Minister Shorten travel to the USA 
 
@CabDiv‐ Could you please confirm if the Minister has any cabinet and/or committee commitments during this 
period. 
 

Ministerial Overseas Travel Proposal ‐ request for advice ‐ due COB Monday 29 April 
2024.  
 
Approval is being sought for Minister Shorten to travel to the USA from 8 – 16 June 2024. 
 

Instructions: 
 

 Advice should be emailed to Mintravel@pmc.gov.au. If not received by the deadline, we will assume you 

have no concerns with the proposed travel.  

 International Division and policy areas are asked to collaborate in providing consolidated advice back to 
Government Division. 

 The Ministerial Travel team will consider the administrative aspects of the travel proposal, including the 

parliamentary sitting dates, and assess it against the Ministerial International Travel Guidelines 
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(Ministerial International Travel Guidelines | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (pmc.gov.au)). 

Further advice will be sought from branches as required.  

 Please note PMO are enforcing the Guidelines and are rigorously assessing each request. 

1. Is the travel supported?  

 Yes / No [Please provide details/reasons.] 
 

 
2. Does the travel align with Australia’s strategic priorities?   

 Yes / No [Please provide details.] 

 
3. Are there any conflicts with the timing of the travel in regard to the Minister’s portfolio 

responsibilities?  

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
e. @pmc.gov.au  w. pmc.gov.au  
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
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From: Ministerial Travel
Sent: Tuesday, 30 April 2024 10:10 AM
To: ; Ministerial Travel
Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request - Shorten - USA - 8 June to 16 June 2024 

[SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi   

No apology necessary! Thank you for providing this information.  

Kind regards, 
 

 
Adviser 
Government Section | Parliamentary and Government Branch 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
p.  | e.  @pmc.gov.au | w. pmc.gov.au

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and 

Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices 

of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.

From:  @pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 30 April 2024 10:05 AM 
To: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, 
CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
Importance: High 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Good morning    

Apologies we missed this earlier request (there were afew others actioned on this day!), so sorry… 

 
 


o

o


Let me know if you have any questions or require further information. 
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Kind regards 
 

  

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 

p.    |   m.   
Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit  Barton  ACT  2600  |  PO Box 6500  CANBERRA  ACT  2600 
e.  @pmc.gov.au | w. www.pmc.gov.au  
 

 

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
Sent: Tuesday, 30 April 2024 9:06 AM 
To:  @pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, 
CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
Importance: High 
 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Good morning team, 
 
Just wanting to follow up on the below request for advice for Minister Shorten’s travel to the USA.  
 
Could you please confirm if the Minister has any Cabinet and/or committee commitments from 8 June to 16 June 
2024?  
 
Kind regards 

 
 

 
Adviser 
Government Section | Parliamentary and Government Branch 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
p.   | e. @pmc.gov.au | w. pmc.gov.au  

 

 

 

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

@pmc.gov.au>;  ‐
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
Please copy emails to: @pmc.gov.au 

 

 

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
Sent: Friday, 3 May 2024 12:13 PM
To:  Ministerial Travel
Cc: ; ; 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=PROTECTED, 

CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi   

The relevant policy areas are unable to provide advice on this proposed travel without the agenda for the UN 
conference.  Some idea of expected meeƟngs in the margins, warranƟng ministerial aƩendance, would also be 
helpful.  Also, the request is for the CoS and adviser to accompany, but there is no raƟonale for the excepƟonal 
reason why they are required. In relaƟon, can the Office advise what the makeup of the delegaƟon will be? This 
might assist in their argument for two advisers, if they’re not expecƟng support from the mission or the department. 

Are you able to please seek this further informaƟon from the Minister’s office?  

 

From:  @pm.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 19 April 2024 2:21 PM 
To: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au>;   

@pm.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi team, 

Please find aƩached a Ministerial InternaƟonal Travel Request Form for Min Shorten for travel to the US from 8‐16 
June 2024, for acƟon please. 

Kind regards, 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer  
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
p. |m. 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 19 April 2024 9:15 AM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Good morning   
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Please find aƩached request signed by   for approval.  We look forward to hearing from you.  If we’ve 
missed anything, of course let me know.   
 
Many thanks.   
 
Kind regards 

 
 
 

  
Ministerial Office Manager I Office of the Hon. Bill Shorten MP  
Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme I Minister for Government Services I Federal Member 
for Maribyrnong 
M119, Parliament House, ACT, 2600  
P:  /  E: @dss.gov.au 
The Department of Social Services acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia, and their 
continuing connection to land, water and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to Elders both 
past and present. 
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From:
Sent: Monday, 6 May 2024 11:10 AM
To:
Cc: ;  

Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request - Shorten - USA - 8 June to 16 June 2024 
[SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi  , 

Confirming that we have nil issues with the updated itinerary and additional information, and that our previous 
advice is unchanged. 

Happy to chat! 

Regards, 
 

 | Adviser  
Disability and Children’s Policy 
Social Policy Division  
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet  
p.
e. @pmc.gov.au
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
Sent: Monday, 6 May 2024 10:00 AM 
To:  @pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au>;   
@pmc.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, 
CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi   

We largely defer to our SPD colleagues to confirm they support the updated itinerary and additional information. 
From the UN‐COSP side, we don’t have any concerns with the travel request.  

Thank you 
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Middle East, Africa and Multilat 

p. (  m.   

 
 

From: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 6 May 2024 9:41 AM 
To:  @pmc.gov.au>; Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au>;  
@pmc.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, 
CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Morning   
 
Thank you for providing consolidated feedback on Minister Shorten’s travel. 
 
We noted your in‐principle support, given no agenda had been released for the UN COSP17 and it wasn’t clear who 
the Minister would be meeting with and what discussions he would be a part of.  
 
We’ve received updated advice from Minister Shorten’s office (see attached), which includes a UN issued provisional 
agenda, and a comprehensive draft program of the Minister’s trip.  
Grateful if you could please take a look at the attached, and let us know if you have any further input or feel that 
this offers more support to the proposed travel.   
 
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
Sent: Monday, 29 April 2024 4:17 PM 
To: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au>;  @pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au>;   
@pmc.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ USA ‐ 8 June to 16 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, 
CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Dear  , 
 
Thank you for consulting. We have coordinated feedback on behalf of our SPD and MEAM colleagues. 
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With thanks to our PM&C colleagues, see collated response below to MinTravel request for Minister Shorten from 
the 8‐16 June. 
 
Happy to discuss. 
 
Best, 
 

 | Adviser 

UK, US and Canada Section | International Division 

T:   
E.  @pmc.gov.au 

 

From: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 22 April 2024 12:49 PM 
To:  @pmc.gov.au>;  ‐

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

Support‐in principle. We note that the agenda has not been released for the UN COSP17 – Convention 
on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, (CPSD) as yet so it is unclear who Minister Shorten will be 
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meeting and which discussions he will be part of, but we would expect that these details will be firmed 
up once the agenda is released in May. We also note the timing concerns/sensitivities listed below. 
 

 
2. Does the travel align with Australia’s strategic priorities?   

Yes the travel is consistent with the Government’s commitment to the UN Convention on the Rights of 
Persons with Disabilities. Minister Shorten’s trip will deliver key national statements, attend discussion 
sessions, and lead and participate in side events and meetings. The Minister will further Australia’s 
strategic policies by meeting with key international counterparts, stakeholders and partners, and will 
have the opportunity to outline key government initiatives in these areas. 

 
3. Are there any conflicts with the timing of the travel in regard to the Minister’s portfolio 

responsibilities?  

    . The Hon Julie Collins, 

Minister for Small Business, Government Services and Housing will act from the 8/6/2024 to the 

16/6/24. 

 

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
Sent: Monday, 6 May 2024 8:50 AM
To:
Cc: Ministerial Travel
Subject: FW: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=PROTECTED, 

CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]
Attachments: UN Issued Provisional Agenda.pdf; Ministerial International Travel Request Form - 

DRAFT ITINERARY AT 3 MAY 2024.docx

Importance: High

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Morning  , 
 
Please find below the addiƟonal informaƟon supplied in support of Min Shorten’s travel as requested. 
 
Kind regards, 
 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer  
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
p.   | m.  

 
 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Sunday, 5 May 2024 11:53 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Importance: High 
 
Hi    
 
Thank you for your email. 
 
As you’re aware, Minister Shorten will be aƩending the Conference of State ParƟes (COSP 17), as the Minister 
represenƟng Australia and as the head of DelegaƟon. In his role as Australia’s delegate, he’ll oversee progressing 
Australia’s prioriƟes at this annual internaƟonal conference, which considers maƩers regarding the implementaƟon 
of the ConvenƟon on the Rights of Persons with DisabiliƟes (CRDP). These responsibiliƟes include: 
 

 Progress Australia’s strategic prioriƟes in implemenƟng CRPD with other states parƟes, the UN and civil 
society aƩending COSP17. 

 Delivering Australia’s NaƟonal statement on Australia’s progress towards the realisaƟon of disability rights. 

 Delivering joint country statements, on the advice of the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade as they 
become available. 

 Leading bilateral meeƟngs with like‐minded countries. 

 MeeƟngs with the UN in relaƟon to COSP17 and the CRDP. 

 MeeƟngs with key stakeholders relaƟng to porƞolio responsibiliƟes.  

 AƩending an Australian Welcome RecepƟon and other relevant side events, meeƟngs, and official funcƟons. 
 
I am informed a full, detailed agenda is not available from the UN at present, however DSS has helpfully provided 
the aƩached. 
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If any further informaƟon is required, of course let me know and I will organise for it to be supplied tomorrow.   
 
Thank you again and we look forward to receiving the approval on or about 6 May 2024.   
 
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
Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 12:31 PM 
To:  @dss.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi  , 
 
The travel team at PM&C has reached out seeking some addiƟonal informaƟon in support of Min Shorten’s travel 
request. 
 
Specifically, are you able to provide the agenda for the UN conference? Some idea of expected meeƟngs in the 
margins, warranƟng ministerial aƩendance, would also be helpful. 
 
Also, the request is for the CoS and an adviser to accompany, but there is no raƟonale for the excepƟonal reason 
why they are required. Can you advise what the makeup of the delegaƟon will be? This may assist with the 
argument for two advisers if you’re not expecƟng support from the mission or the department.  
 
Kind regards, 
 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer 
 
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
MG 8, Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600 
p.   |m.  
e. pm.gov.au | @pmc.gov.au 
 
For out‐of‐hours assistance please contact the DLO duty phone on   

 

 

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
Sent: Thursday, 2 May 2024 2:59 PM 
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To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Thanks    
 
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, May 2, 2024 2:58 PM 
To:  @dss.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi  , 
 
The finalised brief has yet to come up to the Office, so I wouldn’t expect it to be able to be progressed for signing 
unƟl Monday at the earliest. 
 
Kind regards, 
 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer  
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
p.   | m.   

 
 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Thursday, 2 May 2024 2:34 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Hi   
 
Would you happen to have an approval update?  Just checking.  Thank you. 
 
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
P: /  E: @dss.gov.au 
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
Sent: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 9:33 AM 
To: ' @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Thanks  .  Done.  I’ve wriƩen to my contact in the PMO. 
 
 
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
P: (  /  E: @dss.gov.au 
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
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2024 3:29 PM 
To:  @dss.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi  , 
 
Thank you for the addiƟonal context. If there are factors that require early approval of the travel request, it may be 
best to reach out directly to the PMO.   
 
Kind regards, 
 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer  
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
p.   | m.   

 
 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 29 April 2024 3:17 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Hi   
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I’ve just learned of the requirement to submit a credenƟals leƩer to be signed by Minister Wong to the UN well in 
advance of the conference commencing.   
 
The earlier the trip approval can be achieved, I think the more Ɵme there will be to organise some of these 
addiƟonal steps. 
 
Look forward to hearing from you on or about 6 May.   
 
Thank you very much again for your guidance. 
 
 
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
P:  /  E: dss.gov.au 
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
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2024 9:07 AM 
To:  @dss.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi  , 
 
The brief is expected up to the Office on 6 May, so expect it would be progressed for final approval/signing a day or 
two aŌer that. 
 
Kind regards, 
 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer  
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
p.   | m.   

 
 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Sunday, 28 April 2024 6:38 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Hi   
 
I know we aren’t expecƟng to receive an approval for a couple of weeks yet, but just enquiring whether there’s an 
update on the outcome? 
 
Thank you. 
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
P:  / (  E: dss.gov.au 
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
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2024 2:31 PM 
To:  @dss.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 

Dear   

Thank you for your email. This email acknowledges we have received the international travel request for your 
Minister.  

The Ministerial international travel guidelines provide that a Ministerial International Travel Request Form must be 
sent to the Prime Minister’s Office (via  ) four weeks prior to intended departure date unless the 
travel has in‐principle approval, in which case the Form may be submitted three weeks prior to departure.  

Delays in seeking approval may result in Ministers not being able to travel as planned, given that IPEA is unable to 
release funds to secure airline tickets and accommodation until approval for the travel has been granted by the 
Prime Minister (or delegate). 

Please note that your Ministerial International Travel Request Form was received within the necessary timeframe. 

Based on your submission today, we anticipate you will receive advice of the Prime Minister’s decision on your 
Minister’s proposed travel by 17 May 2024. 

If you have any questions about the proposed travel, please reply to this email or give us a call. 

Kind regards, 
 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer 
 
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
MG 8, Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600 
p.  m.   
e. @pm.gov.au |  pmc.gov.au 
 
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
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From:   < dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 19 April 2024 9:15 AM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:   < dss.gov.au> 
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
 
______________________________________________________________________  
IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, contains information  
that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or  
other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you  
must not review, copy, disseminate or disclose its contents to any other  
party or take action in reliance of any material contained within it. If you  
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by  
return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the  
message from your computer system.  
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
Sent: Monday, 6 May 2024 12:04 PM
To: ; Ministerial Travel; 
Cc:  

Subject: RE: Ministerial Travel Request - Shorten - USA - 8 June to 16 June 2024 
[SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi   

Many thanks for confirming! 

Kind regards 
 

 
Adviser 
Government Section | Parliamentary and Government Branch 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
p.  | e. @pmc.gov.au | w. pmc.gov.au

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
Sent: Monday, 6 May 2024 11:39 AM 
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

Thanks for providing this updated information and proposed program and itinerary for Minister Shorten’s travel to 
the US from the 8‐16 June.  

UUC has nil concerns. Other teams (SPD and MEAM) have also come back to us with nil concerns. 

With thanks to our PM&C colleagues, we are happy to support the travel request. 

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

pmc.gov.au>;   
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
p. (  | e. @pmc.gov.au | w. pmc.gov.au  

 

 

 

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
To: Cabinet Attendant  @pmc.gov.au>; International ‐ US, UK and Canada 

@pmc.gov.au>; SPD ‐ Disability and Children's Policy 
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

 Yes the Minister will be absent for the  . The Hon Julie Collins, 

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
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 10:58 AM
To: ;  Office; Belgrove, David; Ministerial Travel
Cc: Doherty, Greta; ; Rule, Erin
Subject: RE: URGENT: Australian Government Delegation to COSP [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

OFFICIAL: Sensitive 
Thanks  . 

Please don’t hesitate to reach out if we can assist with anything. 

 (she/her)  
Executive Officer to Greta Doherty 
First Assistant Secretary 
Social Policy Division 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
1 National Circuit, Barton  ACT  2600 | PO Box 6500  Canberra  ACT 2600 
P:   m:   e:  @pmc.gov.au w. pmc.gov.au 

From:  @pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 10:55 AM 
To:    @pmc.gov.au>; Belgrove, David <David.Belgrove@pmc.gov.au>; Ministerial Travel 
<MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc: Doherty, Greta <Greta.Doherty@pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au>; Rule, Erin <Erin.Rule@pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: URGENT: Australian Government Delegation to COSP [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive] 

OFFICIAL: Sensitive 
Hi   

We will fast track this brief today in light of your advice below.  

Kind regards 

  

Senior Adviser 

Government Section | Parliamentary and Government Branch 

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 

p.  |  m. 

One National Circuit, BARTON ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600

e. @pmc.gov.au |w. pmc.gov.au

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and Traditional 

Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal 

and Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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From: FAS SPD Office  @pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 9:55 AM 
To: Belgrove, David <David.Belgrove@pmc.gov.au>; Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc: Doherty, Greta <Greta.Doherty@pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au>; Rule, Erin <Erin.Rule@pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: URGENT: Australian Government Delegation to COSP [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive] 
Importance: High 
 

OFFICIAL: Sensitive 
Good Morning   and Ministerial Travel Team, 
 
Thank you for your call last night, we providing the informaƟon you relayed to DSS and they’ve brought to our 
aƩenƟon that a decision this week is needed to ensure Minister Shorten can be inscribed to present a NaƟonal 
Statement at COSP. 
 
Further details are provided below.   
 
Is there anything SPD can do to assist with the progression and approval of the brief? 
 
Thank you in advance, we appreciate anything you can do fast track this process. 
 
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
 

 

From: WHITECROSS, Andrew <Andrew.WHITECROSS@dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 7:39 PM 
To: Doherty, Greta <Greta.Doherty@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc: SHANNON, Robyn <Robyn.SHANNON@dss.gov.au>;  @dss.gov.au>;   

  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: URGENT: Australian Government Delegation to COSP [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive] 
 
Hi Greta  
 
I understand you requested some further informaƟon in a conversaƟon with Robyn Shannon earlier today to 
understand the urgency in relaƟon to formal approval sought from the Prime Minister for internaƟonal travel for the 
Honourable Bill Shorten MP, and two ministerial staff (  and  ) as part of the 
Australian Government DelegaƟon. 
 
Australia raƟfied the CRPD in 2008 and parƟcipates in the United NaƟons Conference of States ParƟes (COSP) to the 
ConvenƟon on the Rights of Persons with DisabiliƟes (CRPD) each year, to meet and consider maƩers about 
implementaƟon of the CRPD, with other signatories to the CRPD. The COSP takes place annually in June at the UN 
Headquarters in New York, with the 17th Session of COSP scheduled from 11 to 13 June 2024. 
 
States ParƟes (Governments) are able to present a NaƟonal Statement on behalf of their country at COSP and may 
also present joint country statements where opportuniƟes are presented. Consistent with past pracƟce, it is 
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proposed that Minister Shorten present a NaƟonal Statement at this COSP, with the UN requiring speakers to be 
inscribed by no later than 15 May 2024.  
 
Prior to Speakers being inscribed to the UN portal, formal approval is required of the Australian Government 
DelegaƟon. As such, we would be grateful for your assistance in facilitaƟng approval this week.  
 
In addiƟon to aƩendance at COSP and associated UN requirements, prompt approval will enable meeƟngs to be 
progressed with internaƟonal ministerial counterparts with appropriate lead Ɵme.   
 
To maximise the visit to New York, a significant number of bilateral meeƟngs and aƩendance at side events are also 
facilitated around COSP commitments. Due to scheduling pressures, consistent with last year where the Chief of 
Staff and Senior Media Advisor accompanied Minister Rishworth, it is proposed that Minister Shorten is also 
supported by two ministerial officers, his Chief of Staff and Senior Advisor.  
 
Please reach out if you require anything further, and I appreciate your assistance with progressing this request as 
soon as pracƟcal. 
 
Regards 
 

 
Andrew Whitecross 
Group Manager | Disability and Carer Programs 
Department of Social Services 

 
e| andrew.whitecross@dss.gov.au |w| www.dss.gov.au  
Pronouns: he, him 

 
Executive Assistant:  ,   | @dss.gov.au   
 
The Department of Social Services acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to 
land, water and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to Elders both past and present. 
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From: Ministerial Travel
Sent: Monday, 20 May 2024 2:38 PM
To: ;  Ministerial Travel
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 
Hi    

No re‐submission necessary. Could you please just ensure that the date is amended in AƩachment A to reflect the 
correct travel dates?  

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
Sent: Monday, 20 May 2024 2:26 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au>; Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Importance: High 

OFFICIAL 
Hi team 

Please see below email from Shorten’s office. Can you please confirm whether this is the only change you’ve seen to 
his original travel request? 

Can you also please confirm if they need to re‐submit their request with adjusted cosƟngs/iƟnerary?  

Thanks 

 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 20 May 2024 2:18 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Importance: High 
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Hi there  
 
Thanks so much for the chat.  Here’s a copy of my email to  sent this morning. 
 
 
Kind  
Maree 
 
 

  
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
P:  E: @dss.gov.au 
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
Sent: Monday, May 20, 2024 9:34 AM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Importance: High 
 
Good morning  
 
With reference to a conversation between the PM’s chief of staff and our chief of staff, we advise the following: 
 

 the trip is being reduced by one day, with travel being adjusted accordingly, 
 
as requested. 
 
There are a number of matters requiring priority attention in connection with UN/the conference arrangements, 
including having the official credentials letter signed by Minister Wong (which, I’m informed, can’t be done before 
the PM approval is issued).   
 
May we please receive the written travel approval today? 
 
Thank you. 
 
Kind regards 

 
 
 

  
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
Sent: Tuesday, 21 May 2024 12:38 PM
To:
Cc: ; ; Ministerial Travel;  

@servicesaustralia.gov.au';  
'; ; ; ;  

; 
Subject: APPROVAL – International Travel – Minister Shorten – USA – 8 June to 

[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

OFFICIAL: Sensitive 
Dear  

I refer to your correspondence dated 18 April 2024 seeking approval for the Minister for the National 
Disability Insurance Scheme and Minister for Government Services, the Hon Bill Shorten MP, to travel to 

the USA from 8 June to 15 June 2024. 

The Prime Minister has asked me to convey to you that: 

 The Prime Minister has approved Minister Shorten’s travel to the USA from 8 June to 15 June 2024,
accompanied by one adviser.  

 The current program does not have any engagements scheduled for Sunday 9 June. To maintain
value for money expectations the travel should be shortened to avoid the rest day or ministerial-level

engagements programed for that day.  

 Minister Shorten and the advisers travelling are required to participate in a security briefing prior to
departure, which is to be organised by your Department. Your Department is required to coordinate

this briefing with relevant security agencies.  

 It is noted that the Minister for Small Business and Minister for Housing, the Hon Julie Collins MP,
will act as the Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme and Minister for Government

Services while Minister Shorten is absent. 

o As Minister Collins is appointed to administer the Department of Social Services, there is no
requirement for an Instrument of Authorisation. 

 Your office is responsible for giving the Independent Parliamentary Expenses Authority the details
of the staff members who will accompany the Minister. Email advice should be sent to 

@ipea.gov.au.  

 The Ministerial International Travel Guidelines (October 2023) are available from the PM&C
website.  

Kind regards 
 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer 
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP  

MG 8, Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600  
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From:
Sent: Tuesday, 21 May 2024 9:22 AM
To: Ministerial Travel
Cc: ; 
Subject: FW: Shorten returns 15 June [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL 
Hi team, 

For visibility. 

Kind regards, 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer  
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
p. (  | m. 

From:  @pm.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 21 May 2024 9:13 AM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: Shorten returns 15 June [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 21 May 2024 9:02 AM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Good morning  

Leaves the US in evening of 13 June 2024, arriving in Melbourne 6.45am on 15 June 2024. 

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
Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2024 8:40 AM 
To:  @dss.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au>;   

@dss.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi   
 
Can you please confirm when the Minister will arrive back into Australia (the note below says when he leaves US, 
but we need arrival date in Aus). 
 
Thanks 
 

 
 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 20 May 2024 5:17 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au>;  @dss.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Hi  
 
Departing Australia on 8 June 2024 and leaving the US on 13 June 2024. 
 
Let me know if you need any further details. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, May 20, 2024 5:13 PM 
To:  @dss.gov.au>;  @dss.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 

OFFICIAL 
Hi   –  thanks, can you please confirm your new travel dates? Thanks so much  
 

From:  @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 20 May 2024 9:34 AM 
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
 

 we agree to release  for comment before departure; and 
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
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 2:48 PM 
To: ' @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Importance: High 
 
Hi   
 
Is there an update to share relaƟng to this trip approval?  Thank you. 
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 11:15 AM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
Importance: High 
 
Good morning  
 
I wonder whether you have an outcome to share in relaƟon to this trip approval request please?  I understand 
there’s sƟll quite a bit of work to be done with the UN to get the arrangements in order.  
 
Thanks again so much.   
 
 
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
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2024 4:28 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Ministerial international travel request form [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Hi   
 
I hope you are well.   
 
Would you mind poinƟng me in the right direcƟon? 
 
We entered an internaƟonal trip approval in the usual manner with the PMO DLO on 19 April 2024.  We received an 
acknowledgement from the DLO the same day. 
 

, the DLO, has indicated that an approval will be with us on or about 6 May 2024. 
 
Today we learned of the requirement to submit a credenƟals leƩer to be signed by Minister Wong to the UN well in 
advance of the conference commencing.   
 
The earlier the trip approval can be achieved, the more Ɵme there will be to organise some of the addiƟonal steps 
required for this parƟcular trip. 
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 suggested raising these addiƟonal components with your office to enquire whether an earlier approval could 
be requested. 
 
Thank you very much. 
 
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
P:  / (  E: @dss.gov.au 
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
sent to the Prime Minister’s Office (via  @pm.gov.au) four weeks prior to intended departure date unless the 
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
p. ( |m.   
e.  @pm.gov.au |  @pmc.gov.au 
 
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
IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, contains information  
that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or  
other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you  
must not review, copy, disseminate or disclose its contents to any other  
party or take action in reliance of any material contained within it. If you  
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by  
return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the  
message from your computer system.  
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
Sent: Tuesday, 4 June 2024 10:13 AM
To: Ministerial Travel; 
Cc: ; 
Subject: RE: Minister Shorten: Ministerial International Travel Request [SEC=PROTECTED, 

CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi   

I’ve reached out to Shorten’s office with similar questions this morning. Have just updated further and requested 
that they get this detail asap. 

Thanks for this.  

 

From: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 4 June 2024 10:08 AM 
To:  @pm.gov.au>; Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au>;   

@pm.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Minister Shorten: Ministerial International Travel Request [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi   

We’ve reviewed Min Shorten’s travel request, and will require some additional information before we can progress 
this brief:  

‐ A rough estimate of costs;  
‐ Any further information that can be provided on the program;  
‐ How this travel interacts with his already approved travel to the US. It would be great to get some clarity on 

how this will impact his US travel, as that’s been approved for 8‐15 June, however he is now scheduled to 
travel to Switzerland on 13 June.  

We understand that the Minister’s travel to Switzerland has already been announced (and is scheduled to occur 
next week), however for briefing purposes the limited information provided will prove difficult for us to pull a formal 
brief together for the PM’s approval.  

Grateful for any further information that can be provided. Happy to discuss if needed.  

Kind regards 
 

 
Adviser 
Government Section | Parliamentary and Government Branch 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
p.  | e. @pmc.gov.au | w. pmc.gov.au

 

FOI/2024/200 - Document 14

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii) s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii) s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii) s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 
47E(

 

s 47E(d) 

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)



2

 

 

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
Sent: Monday, 3 June 2024 6:30 PM 
To: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au>;   

@pm.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: Minister Shorten: Ministerial International Travel Request [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi team  
 
Please see attached an international travel request form from Minister Shorten to travel to Switzerland in June.   
 
Let me know if you need further information from the office.  
 
Thanks 

 

 

 | Departmental Liaison Officer 

Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP  
MG 8, Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600  
P:( | M:   
E: @pm.gov.au  @pmc.gov.au   

         

 

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and 
emerging Elders and Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation 
of cultural, spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander peoples. 
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From:
Sent: Wednesday, 5 June 2024 5:37 PM
To:  Ministerial Travel
Cc: ; ; 
Subject: RE: Minister Shorten: Ministerial International Travel Request [SEC=PROTECTED, 

CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]
Attachments: Ministerial International Travel Request - Switzerland (revised) 050624.docx

PROTECTED//CABINET 
HI Team 

Please see attached an updated international travel request form from Minister Shorten to travel to Switzerland on 
8 June.   

Kind regards, 
 

 | Senior Departmental Liaison Officer 
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Anthony Albanese MP 
MG 8, Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600 
p.   |  m. 
e. @pm.gov.au |  @pmc.gov.au
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
Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 5:17 PM
To:
Cc: ; ; Ministerial Travel; ; 

@servicesaustralia.gov.au; @dss.gov.au; @dss.gov.au; 
; ; 

Subject: AMENDED APPROVAL – International Travel – Minister Shorten – USA and 
Switzerland – 8 to 18 June 2024 [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

OFFICIAL: Sensitive 
Dear  , 

I refer to your correspondence dated 5 June 2024 seeking approval for the Minister for National Disability Insurance 
Scheme and Minister for Government Services, the Hon Bill Shorten MP, to travel to the USA and Switzerland from 8 

to 18 June 2024. 

Further to our email of 21 May 2024, the Prime Minister has asked me to convey to you that: 

 The Prime Minister has approved Minister Shorten’s travel to the USA and Switzerland from 8 to 18
June 2024, accompanied by one adviser.  

 The Prime Minister has also approved Minister Shorten accepting the Swiss Government’s offer to
provide accommodation for the night of 15 June 2024. Minister Shorten will need to declare the

accommodation in the usual way.  

 The Prime Minister has also approved:
o the advisers travelling to the USA to return to Australia independently of the Minister if

required; and 
o the adviser travelling to Switzerland to travel independently of the Minister.

 Minister Shorten and the adviser travelling are required to participate in a security briefing prior to
departure, which is to be organised by your Department. Your Department is required to coordinate

this briefing with relevant security agencies.  

 It is noted that the Minister for Housing, Minister for Small Business and Minister for
Homelessness, the Hon Julie Collins MP, will act as the Minister for National Disability Insurance 

Scheme and Minister for Government Services while Minister Shorten is absent. 

o As Minister Collins is appointed to administer the Department of Social Services, there is no
requirement for an Instrument of Authorisation. 

 Your office is responsible for giving the Independent Parliamentary Expenses Authority the details
of the staff member who will accompany the Minister. Email advice should be sent to 

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

Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600 
p.   
e.  @pm.gov.au  
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From:
Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 10:28 AM
To: Ministerial Travel
Cc: International - Europe and Latin America
Subject: RE: URGENT: Ministerial International Travel Request - Shorten - Switzerland - 

13-18 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]
Attachments: Ministerial International Travel Request - Switzerland (revised) 050624.docx

Importance: High

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi team 

Please see below response to Ministerial travel request for Minister Shorten to travel to Switzerland. 

Thank you 

 | Adviser  
Europe and Latin America |International Division  
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
Ph.   M. +  
e: @pmc.gov.au  

From: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 5 June 2024 9:12 PM 
To:    @pmc.gov.au>;   

@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc: Ministerial Travel <MinTravel@pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: URGENT: Ministerial International Travel Request ‐ Shorten ‐ Switzerland ‐ 13‐18 June 2024 
[SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET] 
Importance: High 

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Hi teams 

Please see below a request for advice on Minister Shorten’s travel to Switzerland.  

Apologies for the tight turnaround, PMO have requested this brief by midday 6 June, given the Minister leaves for 
his already approved US leg on Saturday and would like approval of the Switzerland leg before he departs.  

@CabDiv‐ Could you please confirm if the Minister has any cabinet and/or committee commitments during this 
period. 

Ministerial Overseas Travel Proposal ‐ request for advice ‐ due 10am Thursday 6 June 
2024.  

Approval is being sought for Minister Shorten to travel to Switzerland from 13 to 18 June 
2024. 
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Instructions: 
 

 Advice should be emailed to MinTravel@pmc.gov.au. If not received by the deadline, we will assume you 

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

 Yes. Minister Shorten is travelling to Switzerland to represent the Australian Government at the Global 
Peace Summit on Ukraine at Prime Minister’s request. This is the inaugural Global Peace Summit on 
Ukraine at leaders’ level – with more than 160 leaders invited to attend. High level attendance at the 
Summit is commensurate with the approach taken by key international partners.  

 
2. Does the travel align with Australia’s strategic priorities?   

 Yes. Australia supports a just and lasting peace in Ukraine and, since the beginning if the conflict, has 
been consistent in helping Ukraine end the war on its own terms. This includes working with Ukraine 
and international partners both bilaterally and multilaterally, through participation at key international 
fora, to support Ukraine defend its territory and sovereignty. At the Peace Summit, Australia will join 
Ukraine and key international partners to develop a common understanding of a path towards a just 
and lasting peace that builds on previous meetings discussing the Ukraine’s 10‐point peace plan that 
Australia has attended at senior official level. 

 
3. Are there any conflicts with the timing of the travel in regard to the Minister’s portfolio 

responsibilities?  

  No.  

 

4. Are there any concerns/sensitivities about the Minister’s travel proposal that the Branch considers 
should be conveyed to the PMO?  

 No. PM has requested Minister Shorten undertake the travel to represent the Australian Government. 

 
 
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
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VISIT BY MINISTER BILL SHORTEN TO SWITZERLAND  

THURSDAY 13 JUNE 2024 TO TUESDAY 18 JUNE 2024 

FLIGHT ITINERARY 

Local Time Thursday 13 June 2024  

0515 Depart Melbourne on Qantas Flight QF8409  

Delegation:  

1305 Arrive Dubai on Qantas Flight QF8409 

Delegation:  

1535 Depart Dubai on Qantas Flight QF8085 

Delegation:  

1815 Depart New York on United Airlines Flight UA0134 

Delegation: Minister Shorten 

2020 Arrive Zurich on Qantas Flight QF8085 

Delegation:  

 Friday 14 June 2024 

0815  Arrive Zurich, Switzerland on UA0134 

Delegation: Minister Shorten  

Met by HE Elizabeth Day, Australian Ambassador to Switzerland 

0815 Transit from Zurich to Bürgenstock (facilitated by Post) 

Country briefing en route to  with 
Ambassador Day 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

 Sunday 16 June 2024 

TBC Transit from Bürgenstock to Zurich (facilitated by Post) 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

2215 Depart Zurich, Switzerland on Qantas Flight QF8086 (Emirates) 

s 22(1)(a)(ii)
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Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

 Monday 17 June 2024 

0625 Arrive Dubai, United Arab Emirates on Qantas Flight QF8086 
(Emirates) 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

1005 Depart Dubai, United Arab Emirates on Qantas Flight QF8406 
(Emirates) 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

 Tuesday 18 June 2024 

0530 Arrive in Melbourne on Qantas Flight QF8406 (Emirates) 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

Note: Flight details may be incorporated into the draft program. Transit locations should be 
included.  
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 VISIT BY MINISTER BILL SHORTEN TO SWITZERLAND  

THURSDAY 13 JUNE 2024 TO TUESDAY 18 JUNE 2024 

COST ESTIMATES 

ITEM ESTIMATE (AUD) 

Air Fares - Commercial 
Minister Shorten (Business Class – 
New York > Switzerland > Melbourne) 
 

 (Business 
Class – Melbourne > Switzerland > 
Melbourme) 

 
$19,000 
 
 
$14,000 

 $33,000 
Ground transport  
[hire cars] 
[train] 

 
$N/A 
$N/A 

 $0 
Accommodation  
Zurich 
 
Hotel TBC /  

 
, 1 night 

– $543 AUD per night  
 
Accommodation 

 
 
 
 
$543 AUD [Room type – Standard 
room] 

Obbürgen 
 

 
Minister Shorten, 1 night – $995AUD 
per night (590 Swiss Franc)* 

, 1 nights – TBC 
per night* 
Note: Swiss Government is 
covering the costs of 
accommodation for evening of 15 
June 2024 
 
*Accommodation quotes provided by 
post 

$995AUD [Room type – Standard 
room] 
$995AUD [Room type – Standard 
room] 
 

 
 $2,533 (AUD) 
Meals and incidentals 
Minister $400 per day  
Adviser $345 per day 
 

 
$1200 (3 days) 
$1380 (4 days) 
 

 $2,580 (AUD) 

 

TOTAL 

 

$38,113 
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VISIT BY MINISTER BILL SHORTEN TO SWITZERLAND 

THURSDAY 13 JUNE 2024 TO TUESDAY 18 JUNE 2024 

PROGRAM 

Local Time Friday 14 June 2024 

0815 Arrive Zurich and transit to Bürgenstock 

TBC Bilateral meetings – program to be sought from Switzerland 
Post for meetings with key officials and other Heads of 
Delegation attending the Summit. 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

Local Time Saturday 15 June – Sunday 16 June 2024 

TBC Bilateral meetings – program to be sought from Switzerland 
Post for meetings with key officials and other Heads of 
Delegation attending the Summit. 

1630 – 1730 Welcome Ceremony 

Location: Diamond Dome 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

1730 – 1900 Summit Opening Plenary 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

1900 – 1930 Family Photo 

Location: Piazza 

Delegation: Minister Shorten 

1930 – 2000 Welcome Reception 

Location: TBC 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

2000 – 2130 Official Dinner 

Location: Lakeview Ballroom 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  
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2130 Fireplace Chat 

Location: Fireplace 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

 Sunday 16 June 2024 

0745 – 0845  Informal Breakfast 

Location: Lakeside Dining 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

0845 – 0915  Introduction to Breakout Sessions 

0915 – 1045 Breakout Session (TBC) 

Location: Diamond Dome 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

1115 – 1215  Working Plenary  

Location: Diamond Dome 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

1230 – 1330  Closing Plenary 

Location: Diamond Dome 

Delegation: Minister Shorten,  

1330 Transit to Zurich, depart for Australia 
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From:
Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 8:04 AM
To: Ministerial Travel
Cc:
Subject: RE: URGENT: Ministerial International Travel Request - Shorten - Switzerland - 

13-18 June 2024 [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET 
Good morning    

 

 Minister Shorten, 13 June to 18 June 2024:
o

o

Let me know if you have any questions, or require further information. 

Kind regards 

  

 | Cabinet Division 

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 

p.  | m. 

e. @pmc.gov.au | @pmc.gov.au

Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit, Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600 

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
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I work Monday to Thursday 

 

 

The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and emerging Elders and 

Traditional Custodians of Country, and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices 

of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples. 
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From: Titheridge, Dave
Sent: Friday, 7 June 2024 3:13 PM
To:
Cc: ; Chittick, Craig; 
Subject: RE: High Level Summit ON Peace for Ukraine - Joint Communique 

[SEC=PROTECTED]
Attachments: 3. Attachment A - Joint Communiqué.docx

 

Recommend Australia should sign up if partners are doing so. There are no issues with signing up and no redlines 
in the current text. DFAT agree with this recommendaƟon. 

 
  

 
  It 

highlights three areas in parƟcular: nuclear safety, food security and return of forcibly displaced populaƟon. 

Understand that if there are amendments to the text Switzerland will reconsult with aƩendees. 

Regards 
Dave 

From: Titheridge, Dave  
Sent: Friday, 7 June 2024 2:25 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au>;  @pmc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: High Level Summit ON Peace for Ukraine ‐ Joint Communique [SEC=PROTECTED] 

Will do   

From:  @pm.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 7 June 2024 1:41 PM 
To: Chittick, Craig <Craig.Chittick@pmc.gov.au>; Titheridge, Dave <Dave.Titheridge@pmc.gov.au> 
Cc:  @pm.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: High Level Summit ON Peace for Ukraine ‐ Joint Communique [SEC=PROTECTED] 

HI Craig and dave 
Can you pls have a look at this and let me know any issues or main points – should Australia sign up?  Any issues 
with that? 
thanks 

From:  @dfat.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 7 June 2024 1:23 PM 
To:  @pm.gov.au>;  @pm.gov.au> 
Cc:  @dfat.gov.au> 
Subject: High Level Summit ON Peace for Ukraine ‐ Joint Communique [SEC=PROTECTED] 

Warning: DKIM Failure. Email authenticity verification failed  
PROTECTED 
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From:
Sent: Thursday, 13 June 2024 7:27 PM
To:
Cc: Titheridge, Dave; Geoff Bowan; ;  

; ; 
Subject: Re: Ukraine Peace Summit - Draft National Statement [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: Ukraine Peace Summit - Draft of Australia's National Statement.docx

Thank you,   ‐ much appreciated. 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

On 13 Jun 2024, at 17:37,  @dfat.gov.au> wrote: 

OFFICIAL 

Hi  , David  

Hope this email finds you both well.  

Following on from the IDC on Ukraine assistance this afternoon, please see attached a draft of our 
National Statement. There is an opportunity for Minister Shorten to record the Statement in the 
margins and it will be subsequently uploaded onto the Summit website.  

Please note the draft is still with FMO. Will revert back when we have further updates.  

Many thanks,  
  

_______________________________ 

Policy Officer | Ukraine SecƟon (UKS) 
Eastern and South‐East Europe Branch (ERB)| Europe Division (EUD) 
Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade  
T   
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